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PUA Case No. 21-0174

Subject: Dismissal Order Pursuant to Settlement

In the Matter of: Azmery Sultana v. CNMI Department of Labor,
Division of Employment Svcs-PUA.

Department of Labor .....ccccevuiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiecieieciniosicecescacasennns 050288
PUA Case No. 23-0230
Subject: Administrative Order Granting Parties’

Request for Dismissal
In the Matter of: Miyuki E. Takagi v. CNMI Department of Labor,
Division of Employment Svcs-PUA
Department of Labor ......ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiciiiaieeretiscntsecsaresseconsescescene 050290

Labor Case No. 22-017

Subject: Order of Dismissal

In the Matter of:  Noh Tae Hwa v. Ok Bang Corporation

Department of Labor ......ccccciieiiiiiiiieiiiienieicinirecieciicistetcescacssescersacossons 050291



Labor Case No. 22-019
Subject: Order Dismissing Complaint
For Lack of Jurisdiction
In the Matter of: Arleen E. Dycoco v. FM Corporation

Dba FM Manpower

Department of Labor ......ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiicirieiiisnicrciacrsecensessosessnsessassosaasons 050292
Labor Case No. 23-002
Subject: Order of Dismissal
In the Matter of: Mario De Belen v. Saipan Long Shun Corp.
Department of Labor ......ccceceieiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiieiieiiiietieccietieiatieceetoncane 050296
Labor Case No. 23-014
Subject: Order of Dismissal for Failure to State a

Claim, Failure to Establish Jurisdiction,

And Failure to Appear

In the Matter of: Md. Mahamudul Hasan v. Triple K Corporation
Dba Global Security Agency
Department of Labor «..cecuveieieiiiiiiiiieiiiiiieiiieciiitittecccttecececntsosssnanie 050298

DUA Case No. 22-001
Subject: Administrative Order
In the Matter of: Milan Fargo v. CNMI Dept. of Labor,
Div. of Empl. Svcs.- DUA
Department of Labor .....eviiieiiieniiieiiiiiiicieiiiiiiiieniiicioiiiictsisiesesscesen 050302

Enf. Inv. Case No. 22-012-10
Compl.Agency No. 22-013
Subject: Order and Judgment
In the Matter of:  Dept. of Labor, Enf. & Compl. V.
Kauila Ent. Aflfredo J. Cabael and
Mary Ann Cabael
Department of Labor .....cccveveiiieieiereietininintrciraiiticecesaisioreresecessscsssses 050311

Enf. Inv. Case No. 23-001-03
Compl.Agency No. 23-001
Subject: Order and Judgment
In the Matter of: Dept. of Labor, Enf. & Compl. V.
Just Corporation, Winscos Market
Department 0f Labor ...cccueeieieiiiiininiiiiiiiiieiititniiiitiiiiiiiiiiiicisietsisssssscesees 050314









§ 15-20-401 Designated Areas

DCRM has approved designated areas for Water Sports and Recreational Activities as
shown on the maps incorporated into this regulation as Appendix I-III, and as follows:

(a) Rota

Type Location of Coordinates Access to
Operational Area Area

Water-Jet Sasanhaya Bay* East of Latitude 14.117684, Access to the

Craft; (Wedding Cake Longitude 145.1262 and west of | operational

Parasailing; Mountain to Puntan | Latitude 14.119784, Longitude area shall be

Towed Pona) 145.168124 via East

Floatation Harbor
Sasanlagu Bay* North of Latitude 14.134898, Access to the
(Tweksberry Beach | Longitude 145.12511 and south operational
to Pinatang Beach) | of Latitude 14.148754, Longitude | area shall be

145.139242 via West
Harbor
Alaguan Bay* East of Latitude: 14.132685, Access to the
(Puntan Haina to Longitude 145.230542 and west | operational
I’Chenchon Park of Latitude 14.15186, Longitude | area shall be
Bird Sanctuary) 145.26514 via East
Harbor
Non- All Areas N/A N/A
Motorized
*Operational area shall be beyond the reef flat.
(b) Tinian
Type Location of Coordinates Access to Area
Operational Area

Water-Jet Tachogna and 145.375887°E, 14.575745°N Access to the

Craft; Taga Beach 145.375636°E, 14.575250°N operational area

Parasailing; (sandy bottom 145.375996°E, 14.574944°N shall be via the

Towed area adjacentto | 145.376345°E, 14.575376°N Tinian Harbor

Floatation Taga Beach)

Non-Motorized | All Areas N/A N/A
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(c) Saipan

Type Location of Coordinates Access to Area
Operational Areas

Water-Jet Commercial:

Craft: 300 ft. x 400 ft. | The marked area within the Access to the

Operation of marked course, | following coordinates: operational area

Water-Jet Saipan Lagoon, | 145.7141512°E, 15.2107799°N | shall be via

Crafts that are | Garapan 145.7150129°E, 15.2107257°N | Grandvrio

intended to 145.7149493°E, 15.2097222°N | Resort

operate on the 145.7141263°E, 15.2097387°N

surface of the

water, such as | 300 ft. x 600 ft. | The marked area within the Access to the

aJet Ski®,
WaveRunner®,
Sea-Doo, jet
bike, or jet
board/jet surf
and the like.

COMMONWEALTH REGISTER

marked course,
Saipan Lagoon,
Garapan

300 ft. x 600 ft.
marked course,
Saipan Lagoon,
Susupe

following coordinates:

145.7140311°E, 15.2146583°N
145.7148454°E, 15.2146509°N
145.7148264°E, 15.2136302°N
145.7140007°E, 15.2136669°N

The marked area within the
following coordinates:
145.6991133°E, 15.1606853°N
145.6998962°E, 15.1601668°N
145.7008886°E, 15.1614146°N
145.7001512°E, 15.1618803°N

operational area
shall be via
Hyatt
Regency/Fiesta
Resort

Access to the
operational area
shall be via
Saipan World
Resort/Kanoa
Resort

Non-
Commercial:
2,500 ft. x 1,200
ft. area in the
northern lagoon
(located about
1.20 miles NW
of DPW Channel
Ramp)

400 ft. x 800 ft.
area in southern
lagoon (located
about '/4 mile off
the shoreline
from the Kanoa
and World
Resort

There are two operational areas
within the northern lagoon
located within the following
coordinates:
145.7245053°E, 15.2340399°N
145.7305580°E, 15.2381884°N
145.7321583°E, 15.2356363°N
145.7259347°E, 15.2316259°N
AND
145.7394044°E, 15.2437213°N
145.7446500°E, 15.2470024°N
145.7463615°E, 15.2446005°N
145.7410714°E, 15.2411908°N

The operational area in the

southern lagoon shall be within
the following coordinates:

145.6968380°E, 15.1568860°N
145.6979212°E, 15.1586125°N
145.6989332°E, 15.1581517°N
145.6979070°E, 15.1564527°N
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Access to the
operational area
shall be via a
DLNR-approved
site.
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the applicant has sufficiently assessed all potential environmental impacts to the proposed
operational area.
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(A) Tiered permit discounts for qualifying or “LEED certifiable” projects are

available as follows:

Tier

Qualifications

Incentive

Tier 1 Reduction

Building design and construction are
“LEED Certifiable”, scoring between
40-49 points on the LEED v4 or
subsequent Building Design and
Construction Checklist

10% fee
reduction

Tier 2 Reduction

Building design and construction are
“LEED Silver Certifiable”, scoring
between 50-59 points on the LEED v4 or
subsequent Building Design and
Construction Checklist

15% fee
reduction

Tier 3 Reduction

Building design and construction are
“LEED Gold Certifiable”, scoring
between 60-79 points on the LEED v4 or
subsequent Building Design and

20% fee
reduction

Construction Checklist

Tier 4 Reduction

Construction Checklist

Building design and construction are
“LEED Platinum Certifiable”, scoring
between 80110 points on the LEED v4
or subsequent Building Design and

25% fee
reduction

(B) Tiered permitting fee reductions for building redevelopment and/or
stormwater management are available as follows:

Tier Building Redevelopment Stormwater Management | Incentive
Tier 1 BMP |- Permittee or its operators - Project implements and | 5% fee
Reduction implements and maintains on- | maintains on-site reduction
site recycling and composting | stormwater management
programs to reduce 50% or practices that collect from
more of the waste stream; an off-site source and treat|
AND/OR or contain and additional
- Project installs, utilizes, 10%-24% of the project’s
and maintains “Energy total stormwater runoff
Star” rated high volume, based on the 25
efficiency / LED lighting year 24 hour duration
and appliances or a storm event; AND/OR
renewable energy source - Project implements and
supplying 20% or more of maintains 30%-49% of
a project’s electricity pervious surface area or
green infrastructure
elements
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Tier 2 BMP
Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates 15% - 25% of
the existing building

- Project implements and
maintains on-site
stormwater management
practices that collect from
an off-site source and treat|
or contain and additional
25%-49% of the project’s
total stormwater runoff
volume, based on the 25
year 24 hour duration
storm event; AND/OR

- Project implements and
maintains 50% or more of
pervious surface area or
green infrastructure
elements

10%
reduction

Tier 3 BMP
[Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates 26% - 50% of
the existing building

- Project implements and
maintains on-site
stormwater management
practices that collect from
an off-site source and treat|
or contain and additional
50%-74% of the project’s
total stormwater runoff
volume, based on the 25
year 24 hour duration
storm event

20%
reduction

Tier 4 BMP
Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates 51% - 74% of
the existing building

- Project implements and
maintains on-site
stormwater management
practices that collect from
an off-site source and treat
or contain and additional
74% or more of the
project’s total stormwater
runoff volume, based on
the 25 year 24 hour
duration storm event

30%
reduction

Tier 5 BMP
FReduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates over 75% of
the existing building

-Not applicable

50%
reduction

(ii) Qualifying for Discounted Major Siting permit fee. To qualify for the tiered permit fee
reductions listed above, major siting applicants must request discount in writing at least
thirty days prior to submitting a major siting application. Applicants are encouraged to
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(A) Tiered permit discounts for qualifying or “LEED certifiable” projects are

available as follows:

Tier

Qualifications

Incentive

Tier 1 Reduction

Building design and construction are
“LEED Certifiable”, scoring between
40-49 points on the LEED v4 or
subsequent Building Design and
Construction Checklist

10% fee
reduction

Tier 2 Reduction

Building design and construction are
“LEED Silver Certifiable”, scoring
between 50-59 points on the LEED v4 or
subsequent Building Design and
Construction Checklist

15% fee
reduction

Tier 3 Reduction

Building design and construction are
“LEED Gold Certifiable”, scoring
between 60-79 points on the LEED v4 or
subsequent Building Design and

20% fee
reduction

Construction Checklist

Tier 4 Reduction

Construction Checklist

Building design and construction are
“LEED Platinum Certifiable”, scoring
between 80110 points on the LEED v4
or subsequent Building Design and

25% fee
reduction

(B) Tiered permitting fee reductions for building redevelopment and/or
stormwater management are available as follows:

Tier Building Redevelopment Stormwater Management | Incentive
Tier 1 BMP |- Permittee or its operators - Project implements and | 5% fee
Reduction implements and maintains on- | maintains on-site reduction
site recycling and composting | stormwater management
programs to reduce 50% or practices that collect from
more of the waste stream; an off-site source and treat]
AND/OR or contain and additional
- Project installs, utilizes, 10%-24% of the project’s
and maintains “Energy total stormwater runoff
Star” rated high volume, based on the 25
efficiency / LED lighting year 24 hour duration
and appliances or a storm event; AND/OR
renewable energy source - Project implements and
supplying 20% or more of maintains 30%-49% of
a project’s electricity pervious surface area or
green infrastructure
elements
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Tier 2 BMP
Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates 15% - 25% of
the existing building

- Project implements and
maintains on-site
stormwater management
practices that collect from
an off-site source and treat|
or contain and additional
25%-49% of the project’s
total stormwater runoff
volume, based on the 25
year 24 hour duration
storm event; AND/OR

- Project implements and
maintains 50% or more of
pervious surface area or
green infrastructure
elements

10%
reduction

Tier 3 BMP
Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates 26% - 50% of
the existing building

- Project implements and
maintains on-site
stormwater management
practices that collect from
an off-site source and treat
or contain and additional
50%-74% of the project’s
total stormwater runoff
volume, based on the 25
year 24 hour duration
storm event

20%
reduction

Tier 4 BMP
Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates 51% - 74% of
the existing building

- Project implements and
maintains on-site
stormwater management
practices that collect from
an off-site source and treat
or contain and additional
74% or more of the
project’s total stormwater
runoff volume, based on
the 25 year 24 hour
duration storm event

30%
reduction

Tier 5 BMP
Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates over 75% of
the existing building

-Not applicable

50%
reduction

(ii) Qualifying for Discounted Major Siting permit fee. To qualify for the tiered permit fee
reductions listed above, major siting applicants must request discount in writing at least
thirty days prior to submitting a major siting application. Applicants are encouraged to
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(A) Tiered permit discounts for qualifying or “LEED certifiable™ projects are

available as follows:

Tier

Qualifications

[Incentive

Tier 1 Reduction

Building design and construction are
“LEED Certifiable”, scoring between
40-49 points on the LEED v4 or
subsequent Building Design and
Construction Checklist

10% fee
reduction

Tier 2 Reduction

Building design and construction are
“LEED Silver Certifiable”, scoring
between 50-59 points on the LEED v4 or
subsequent Building Design and
Construction Checklist

15% fee
reduction

Tier 3 Reduction

Building design and construction are
“LEED Gold Certifiable”, scoring
between 60-79 points on the LEED v4 or
subsequent Building Design and

20% fee
reduction

Construction Checklist

Tier 4 Reduction

Construction Checklist

Building design and construction are
“LEED Platinum Certifiable”, scoring
between 80110 points on the LEED v4
or subsequent Building Design and

25% fee
reduction

(B) Tiered permitting fee reductions for building redevelopment and/or
stormwater management are available as follows:

Tier Building Redevelopment Stormwater Management | Incentive
Tier 1 BMP |- Permittee or its operators - Project implements and | 5% fee
Reduction implements and maintains on-| maintains on-site reduction
site recycling and composting | stormwater management
programs to reduce 50% or practices that collect from
more of the waste stream,; an off-site source and treat
AND/OR or contain and additional
- Project installs, utilizes, 10%-24% of the project’s
and maintains “Energy total stormwater runoff
Star” rated high volume, based on the 25
efficiency / LED lighting year 24 hour duration
and appliances or a storm event; AND/OR
renewable energy source - Project implements and
supplying 20% or more of maintains 30%-49% of
a project’s electricity pervious surface area or
green infrastructure
elements
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Tier 2 BMP
Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates 15% - 25% of
the existing building

- Project implements and
maintains on-site
stormwater management
practices that collect from
an off-site source and treat
or contain and additional
25%-49% of the project’s
total stormwater runoff
volume, based on the 25
year 24 hour duration
storm event; AND/OR

- Project implements and
maintains 50% or more of
pervious surface area or
green infrastructure
elements

10%
reduction

Tier 3 BMP
Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates 26% - 50% of
the existing building

- Project implements and
maintains on-site
stormwater management
practices that collect from
an off-site source and treat
or contain and additional
50%-74% of the project’s
total stormwater runoff
volume, based on the 25
year 24 hour duration
storm event

20%
reduction

Tier 4 BMP
Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates 51% - 74% of
the existing building

- Project implements and
maintains on-site
stormwater management
practices that collect from
an off-site source and treat
or contain and additional
74% or more of the
project’s total stormwater
runoff volume, based on
the 25 year 24 hour
duration storm event

30%
reduction

Tier 5 BMP
Reduction

Applicant redevelops or
rehabilitates over 75% of
the existing building

-Not applicable

50%
reduction

(ii) Qualifying for Discounted Major Siting permit fee. To qualify for the tiered permit fee
reductions listed above, major siting applicants must request discount in writing at least
thirty days prior to submitting a major siting application. Applicants are encouraged to
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So ordered this 27th day of July, 2023.
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Administrative Decision
PUA-21-0174

dismissal. The terms of the Settlement Agreement are hereby incorporated into this Order.! There

are no other pending issues to adjudicate. Accordingly, this matter is hereby DISMISSED.

JACQUELINE A. NICOLAS
Chief Administrative Hearing Officer

! This Order shall supersede any conflicting terms of the Settlement Agreement.
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Administrative Decision
LC-22-019
Page 2 of 4
1 not be dismissed for lack of jurisdiction. Respondent was also ordered to show cause why the
5 ||c8se should not be referred to Enforcement for a proper investigation of agency violations.!
III. DISCUSSION
3 .
Pursuant to 3 CMC § 4947(a), “the hearing officer may, after notice and an opportunity to be

4 heard is provided to the parties, dismiss ... a complaint that the hearing officer finds to be without

5 merit.” Pursuant to NMIAC § 80-20.2-130(c), dismissal is warranted on the following grounds:

6 (1) lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter; (2) lack of jurisdiction over the person; (3)

7 ||insufficiency of process; (4) insufficiency of service of process; and (5) failure to state a claim

8 (| upon which relief can be granted. See also NMIAC § 80-20.1-485(b).

9 With respect to employment of foreign national workers, the Administrative Hearing
10 || Office has jurisdiction over “all actions involving alleged violations of the labor and wage laws
1 of the Commonwealth . . . .” 3 CMC § 4942 (emphasis added). The Employments Rules and
12 Regulations further provide:

13 The Administrative Hearing Office shall have jurisdiction over
14 complaints filed with the Administrative Hearing Office by U.S.
Citizens, CNMI permanent residents or U.S. permanent residents,
15 and agency complaints filed by the Department, with respect to
violations of the requirements of job preference and workforce
16 participation pursuant to the Commonwealth Employment Act of 2007,
17 as amended, and other violations of labor laws application in the
Commonwealth. ...
18
The Administrative Hearing Office shall have jurisdiction over
19 complaints filed with the Administrative Hearing Office by foreign
20 national workers,? and agency complaints filed by the Department,
with respect to violations of Commonwealth law and regulations
21 regarding employment and other labor laws applicable in the
Commonwealth. ...
22
The Administrative Hearing Office shall have jurisdiction over
23 complaints filed with the Administrative Hearing Office by other
24
25
26 || Considering that Enforcement subsequently initiated an agency case, no further discussion on this issue is necessary,
2 ““Foreign national worker’ means a person who is not a United States citizen, a United States permanent resident, a
27 || CNMI permanent resident, or an immediate relative of the United States citizen or a United States permanent
resident, or an immediate relative of a CNMI permanent resident, and who entered the CNMI as a nonimmigrant
28 || prior to November 28, 2010 for the declared purpose of being employed in the Commonwealth.” NMIAC § 80-20.1-
080(k).
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Administrative Decision
LC-22-019
Page 3 of 4

nonimmigrant aliens® with respect to violations of Commonwealth law
and regulations regarding employment.

NMIAC § 80-20.1-450(b)(1)-(3) (emphasis added). Importantly, “[t]he Administrative Hearing
Office does not have jurisdiction with respect to claims of tourists. Those claims are pursuant in
the Commonwealth Superior Court.” NMIAC § 80-20.1-450(¢). The rationale to exclude tourists
is based on explicit legislative intent from Public Law 15-108. Thereunder, the Legislature

specifically stated:

It is the intent of the Legislature that this Act shall not apply to persons
admitted to the Commonwealth as tourists, or to persons employed
illegally, i.e. without the approval of the Department of Labor, or to
those persons employing other illegally in the Commonwealth unless
specific provision has been made herein. 1t is the intent of the
Legislature that persons illegally employing others or illegally
employed be prohibited from using the terms of this Act to receive or
avail themselves of a legal right or benefit.

PL 15-108, § 2 (emphasis added). “Whenever it appears by suggestion of the parties or otherwise
that the agency lacks jurisdiction of the subject matter, the agency shall dismiss the
action.” NMIAC § 80-20.2-145(c).

In response to the Order to Show Cause, Complainant criticizes the above-stated law as a
mechanism to perpetuate abuse and exploitation of undocumented workers. However, challenges
to the legality of the law are beyond the authority of this office. It is the function of this office to
uphold and enforce the laws, as written.

As discussed above, this Office is precluded from adjudicating complaints from workers
without valid employment authorization to work in the CNMI. Since Complainant admits that she
does not have valid work authorization, this Office does not have jurisdiction over the complaint.
Accordingly, dismissal of this labor case is required.*

I
"

3 ““Nonimmigrant alien’ means a person described in Section 101(a)(15) of the Immigration and Nationality Act, 8
U.S.C. 1101(a)(15).” NMIAC § 80-20.1-080(p).

4 While this office does not have jurisdiction to hear complaints from undocumented workers, this dismissal does not
preclude Complainant from seeking other avenues of redress from the Court.

EALTH REGISTER VOLUME 45 NUMBERO08 AUGUST 28, 2023 PAGE 050294




Administrative Decision
LC-22-019
Page 4 of 4

IV.  CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, Complainant fails to establish jurisdiction. Accordingly, this
complaint is hereby DISMISSED, with prejudice.

p—

Any person or party aggrieved by this Order may appeal by filing the Notice of Appeal form
and filing fee with the Administrative Hearing Office within fifteen (15) days from the date of
this Order.

So ordered this 10th day of August, 2023.

/s/
JACQUELINE A. NICOLAS
Chief Administrative Hearing Officer

A= - U V. L - S VS N S ]
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Administrative Decision
LC-23-002
Page 2 of 2

within the timeframe of the six-month statute of limitations.! Subsequently, the matter was
referred to Enforcement for investigation on the remaining claims. On April 26, 2023,
Enforcement filed a Determination. Upon request for clarification, Enforcement filed an
Amended Determination on June 16, 2023. Therein, Enforcement found that Complainant is not
owed any wages during the relevant time period. Complainant was ordered to show cause why
his case should not be dismissed for failure to state a claim upon which relief could be granted.

During the Order to Show Cause Hearing, Complainant did not contest or object to any of
Enforcement’s investigative findings. Apparently, Respondent closed the business on January 31,
2020 due to the pandemic. However, despite notice of the business closure, Complainant claims
he continued to work his regular hours as a security guard upon the verbal request of the
company’s former general manager. Complainant’s statements are not credible. At the time, this
manager was no longer employed by the company and there was no evidence to show that
Complainant was authorized to continue working during the closure. Further, Complainant
refused to relinquish keys to the building when requested to do so and Enforcement reports that
the business has no employees and is still shut down. And finally, Complainant filed a PUA
application certifying that he was not working during the relevant time period. Ultimately,
Complainant failed to show cause why this case should not be dismissed.

IV. CONCLUSION

Based on the applicable law and after giving the parties notice and an opportunity to respond
in the hearing, the undersigned finds that dismissal of the labor case is appropriate. Complainant
fails to state a claim upon which relief can be granted. Accordingly, this matter is hereby
DISMISSED.

Any person or party aggrieved by this Order may appeal by filing the Notice of Appeal form
and filing fee with the Administrative Hearing Office within fifteen (15) days from the date of
this Order.

So ordered this 17th day of August, 2023.

/s/

JACQUELINE A. NICOLAS
Chief Administrative Hearing Officer

! See Order Dismissing Claims Outside the Six-Month Statute of Limitations, issued March 21, 2023.
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Administrative Decision
LC-23-014
Page 2 of 4

III. DISCUSSION

On June 28, 2023, Complainant filed a complaint against Respondent for unpaid wages in the
amount of $61,140.00 accruing on or around July 2019 to June 16, 2023. Additionally,
Complainant alleged unlawful deductions for processing the CW-1 application. Upon review of
the pleadings, the undersigned found: (1) a majority of the unpaid wages fall outside the six-
month statute of limitations; and (2) Complainant failed to established jurisdiction. Complainant
was ordered to show cause why the case should not be dismissed. Complainant filed no response
to the written order. Complainant failed to appear to the scheduled hearing.

1. A majority of Complainant’s claim is outside the six-month statute of limitations.

Pursuant to 3 CMC § 4962, “[n]o labor complaint may be filed more than six months after the
date of the last-occurring event that is the subject of the complaint, except in cases where the
actionable conduct was not discoverable upon the last-occurring event.” See also 4 CMC § 9246.
“If a complaint is not timely filed, the hearing office shall dismiss the complaint with prejudice.”
NMIAC § 80-20.1-465(e). Emphasis added.

Complainant filed this complaint on June 28, 2023 but is seeking back wages from July 2019
to June 2023. Considering that wages are generally owed biweekly, a claim for unpaid wages is
discoverable shortly after it is due. For an unknown reason, Complainant waited approximately 4
years to assert his claims. Based on the six-month statute of limitations, Complainant can only
recover claims asserted within six months of filing the complaint. Accordingly, the claims for
unpaid wages accruing before December 28, 2022 are time-barred.

2. Complainant fails to establish jurisdiction for the remaining claims.

With respect to employment of foreign national workers, the Administrative Hearing
Office has jurisdiction over “all actions involving alleged violations of the labor and wage laws
of the Commonwealth . . . .” 3 CMC § 4942 (emphasis added). The Employments Rules and
Regulations further provide:

The Administrative Hearing Office shall have jurisdiction over
complaints filed with the Administrative Hearing Office by U.S.
Citizens, CNMI permanent residents or U.S. permanent residents,
and agency complaints filed by the Department, with respect to
violations of the requirements of job preference and workforce
participation pursuant to the Commonwealth Employment Act of 2007,
as amended, and other violations of labor laws application in the
Commonwealth. ...
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The Administrative Hearing Office shall have jurisdiction over
complaints filed with the Administrative Hearing Office by foreign
national workers,? and agency complaints filed by the Department,
with respect to violations of Commonwealth law and regulations
regarding employment and other labor laws applicable in the
Commonwealth. ...

The Administrative Hearing Office shall have jurisdiction over
complaints filed with the Administrative Hearing Office by other
nonimmigrant aliens® with respect to violations of Commonwealth law
and regulations regarding employment.

NMIAC § 80-20.1-450(b)(1)-(3) (emphasis added). Importantly, “[t]he Administrative Hearing
Office does not have jurisdiction with respect to claims of tourists. Those claims are pursuant in
the Commonwealth Superior Court.” NMIAC § 80-20.1-450(¢). The rationale to exclude tourists
is based on explicit legislative intent from Public Law 15-108. Thereunder, the Legislature
specifically stated:

It is the intent of the Legislature that this Act shall not apply to persons
admitted to the Commonwealth as tourists, or fo persons employed
illegally, i.e. without the approval of the Department of Labor, or to
those persons employing other illegally in the Commonwealth unless
specific provision has been made herein. 1t is the intent of the
Legislature that persons illegally employing others or illegally
employed be prohibited from using the terms of this Act to receive or
avail themselves of a legal right or benefit.

PL 15-108, § 2 (emphasis added). “Whenever it appears by suggestion of the parties or otherwise
that the agency lacks jurisdiction of the subject matter, the agency shall dismiss the
action.” NMIAC § 80-20.2-145(c).

In filing this complaint, Complainant left the question with respect to jurisdiction blank.
Further, upon review of other supporting documents filed, there is insufficient information to
establish jurisdiction of this claim. Accordingly, dismissal for lack of jurisdiction is appropriate.
7

2 “‘Foreign national worker’ means a person who is not a United States citizen, a United States permanent resident, a|
CNMI permanent resident, or an immediate relative of the United States citizen or a United States permanent
resident, or an immediate relative of a CNMI permanent resident, and who entered the CNMI as a nonimmigrant
prior to November 28, 2010 for the declared purpose of being employed in the Commonwealth.” NMIAC § 80-20.1-
080(k).

3 ““Nonimmigrant alien’ means a person described in Section 101(a)(15) of the Immigration and Nationality Act, 8
U.S.C. 1101(a)(15).” NMIAC § 80-20.1-080(p).
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IV. CONCLUSION

Based on the applicable law, the undersigned finds that dismissal of the labor case is
appropriate. First, Complainant fails to state a claim within the six-month statute of limitations.
Second, Complainant fails to establish jurisdiction for his claim to unpaid wages. Third, after
notice and an opportunity to respond, Complainant failed to appear. Accordingly, this matter is
hereby DISMISSED.

Any person or party aggrieved by this Order may appeal by filing the Notice of Appeal form
and filing fee with the Administrative Hearing Office within fifteen (15) days from the date of
this Order.

So ordered this 9th day of August, 2023.

/s/
JACQUELINE A. NICOLAS
Chief Administrative Hearing Officer
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Office was designated to hear Disaster Unemployment Appeals stemming from Super Typhoon

Yutu (DR-4404-MP).
Upon review of the records, the appeal is timely filed. Accordingly, jurisdiction is established.

III. PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND & ISSUES
On October 24, 2018, Super Typhoon Yutu devastated the islands of Tinian and Saipan. As
one of the strongest typhoons recorded in the U.S. at the time, torrential rain and sustained winds
of 130-180 mph killed two citizens, injured at least 133 others, and damaged or destroyed
significant portions of the islands’ buildings and critical infrastructure. On October 26, 2018, the
US President issued a major disaster declaration and made federal funding available to affected
individuals. Said relief included disaster unemployment benefits to eligible claimants.

Here, Appellant filed a claim for unemployment benefits under the DUA program for the
above-mentioned disaster (DR-4404-MP). Appellant’s claim was ultimately denied by the CNMI
Department of Labor and Appellant sought to appeal the Department’s denial. Originally, the
Hawaii Employment Security Appeals Referee’s Office (ESARO) was the designated entity to
decide appeal cases for this disaster. Due to the ESARO’s extensive backlog, the CNMI
Department of Labor’s Administrative Hearing Office was redesignated to hear first-level appeals
on April 6, 2022.

Upon redesignation, the Administrative Hearing Office issued a Notice of Hearing. The
matter was continued a number of times due to delays in procuring a dictation program,
Appellant’s illnesses, and Appellant’s other hardships. On June 20, 2023, the Administrative
Hearing Office granted Appellant a brief continuance because he just lost his hearing aids and
was in the process of obtaining a new one. The hearing was scheduled for July 18, 2023 and the
undersigned noted that further requests for continuances would not be entertained given the
delayed progress in this case and available accommodations. On July 13, 2023, Appellant
requested another continuance because Medicaid did not fund a replacement hearing aid and other
hardships related to “aging and homelessness.” In consideration of the pending nature of this case,

the uncertainty of Appellant’s continuing circumstances, and the availability of accommodations,
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1 The hearing was held on July 18, 2023. The issue on appeal was: (1) Whether the claim and
5 appeal were timely filed; and (2) whether Appellant is eligible for DUA benefits.
IV.  FINDINGS OF FACT
3 In consideration of the evidence provided and credibility of witness testimony, the
4 undersigned issues the following findings of fact:
3 1. Super Typhoon Yutu hit the CNMI on October 24, 2018. The incident was declared a
6 disaster on October 26, 2018."
7 2. In response to the disaster declaration, the Department launched the Disaster
8 Unemployment Assistance (DUA) program and began receiving applications on
9 November 15, 2018.
10 a. In order to notify potential claimants, the Department issued a number of press
1 releases with instructional information that was widely circulated on the
1 Department’s website, local news, and social media.2
3 b. Additionally, the Department published the Benefit Rights Information Handbook
and made forms available to the public.?
14 3. On or around November 19, 2018, Appellant submitted an application for unemployment
15 assistance under the DUA program.*
16 4. Appellant applied for DUA benefits from the week ending November 3, 2018 to week
17 ending November 17, 2018.
18 5. Inthe initial application,® Appellant self-certified under penalty of perjury that, at the time
19 period claimed for benefits:
20 a. He was a US and CNMI Permanent Resident;
21 b. He was unemployed and in search for suitable work;
2 c. Yutu destroyed his car — thereby limiting his ability to find work; and
d. He s disabled and Yutu exacerbated prior medical conditions, such as asthma.
2 |
24 "
25
26
2 |2
28 ||+ Exi 1
5 Exhibit 6.

COMMOTWEALTH REGISTER VOLUME 45 NUMBERO8 AUGUST 28, 2023 PAGE 050304




O 00 N N AW -

[ N S S T S S S o U G S

COMMO

Administrative Order
DUA-22-001
Page 4 of 9

6. Despite notice® of the requirement to submit supporting documents and requests’ from the
Department, Appellant did not provide substantiating documents to support his claim for
DUA benefits.®

a. There were insufficient records to verify that Appellant was a US or CNMI
Permanent Resident with authorization to work in the CNMI during the time
period claimed for benefits.’

b. There were insufficient records to substantiate that Appellant’s employment was
affected as a direct result of the disaster.'°

7. Appellant was unemployed prior to the disaster and at all times relevant to this claim.

a. Previously, Appellant worked as an Environmental Tech Trainee for the
Department of Community and Cultural A ffairs (“DCCA”™), Office of Aging under
the Senior Community Service Employment Program (“SCSEP”). There,
Appellant worked part-time for approximately 4 hours a day or 20 hours a week
at the rate of $7.25 per hour. On or around April of 2018, Appellant completed the
4-year employment training program and was not retained for further employment
for reasons unrelated to the Disaster.!!

b. On August 8, 2018, Appellant was issued a business license'? for “On-Timeliness
Monetizers Company.” The company was meant to provide educational services
but was not in operation. Appellant did not obtain income or profit from operation
of this business.

c. There is no evidence to demonstrate that Appellant was ever scheduled to begin
employment or unable to reach the place of employment after Super Typhoon
Yutu.

8. On April 1, 2019, the Department issued a disqualifying determination.'> Therein, the

Department found that Appellant’s unemployment was not caused by the disaster and

6 See Exhibits 2-3.

7 See Exhibit 12,

8 See Exhibit 5.

9 See Exhibits 5 and 8.

19 See Exhibit 5 and 9-11.
"' Exhibits 9-10.

12 Exhibit 11.

13 Exhibit 13.
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disqualified Appellant from DUA benefits from weeks ending November 3, 2018 to
November 17, 2018.

9. OnMay 1, 2019, Appellant submitted a request for reconsideration.'* Therein, Appellant
argues that reconsideration is warranted because he was unable to go to work because
Super Typhoon Yutu damaged his car and gave him a foot infection.

10. On May 10, 2019, the Department issued a Redetermination.!® Therein, the Department
found that Appellant’s request for reconsideration did not provide sufficient evidence to
warrant reversal of their initial determination.

11. On May 22, 2019, Appellant filed the present appeal'® and the matter was scheduled for
an Administrative Hearing.

12. Appellant failed to appear at his scheduled hearing.

13. During the hearing, the Department did not contest the timeliness of the claim.

14. During the hearing, the Department did not contest the timeliness of the appeal filing,

V. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

In consideration of the above-stated findings and applicable law, the undersigned issues the
following conclusions of law:

1. Appellant’s application is timely.

“Claimants must file their initial application within 30 days after the announcement of the of
the major disaster as a result of the which the individual became unemployed. . . .” 20 CFR §
625.8. After the declared disaster, the Department began accepting applications on November 15,
2018. The filing deadline of January 15, 2019 was extended to February 14, 2019. Appellant filed
his initial application on November 19, 2018 — well before the filing deadline. Accordingly,
Appellant’s application is timely.

2. Appellant’s appeal is timely.

“Any determination or redetermination . . . may be appeals by the applicable ... [within] 60
days from the date the determination or redetermination is issued or mailed . . . .” 20 CFR §
625.10. The Department’s redetermination was issued May 10, 2019. Appellant filed his appeal
approximately two weeks later on May 22, 2019. Accordingly, Appellant’s appeal is timely.

14 Exhibit 14.
15 Exhibit 15.
16 Exhibit 16.
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3. Appellant’s unemployment was not a direct result of the Disaster.

In order to be eligible for DUA benefits, an applicant must meet all the requirements under
20 CFR § 625.4. Specifically, an applicant must file a timely application'’ demonstrating that,
during the disaster assistance period,'® he or she was unemployed as a direct result' of the
disaster, was able and available to work, and did not refuse to work.

Unemployment is caused by a major disaster when: (1) unemployment follows the date the
major disaster began; (2) the individual is unable to reach the place of employment as a direct
result of the major disaster; (3) the individual was scheduled to commence employment and does
not have a job or is unable to reach the job as a direct result of the major disaster; (4) the individual
assumed the role of breadwinner or major support for a household after the former breadwinner
or head of household died as a direct result of the major disaster; or (5) the individual cannot work
because of an injury caused as a direct result of the major disaster. 20 CFR § 625.5(a). In cases
of self-employment, causation is met when: (1) unemployment follows the date the major disaster
began; (2) the individual is unable to reach the place where services are performed as a direct
result of the major disaster; (3) the individual was scheduled to commence regular services, but
does not have a job or is unable to reach the place where services were to be performed as a direct
result of the major disaster; or (4) the individual cannot perform services because of an injury
caused as a direct result of the major disaster. 20 CFR § 625.5(b). An individual’s unemployment
is considered a direct result of the major disaster when it is the immediate result — rather than a
longer chain of events precipitated or exacerbated by the disaster. 20 CFR § 625.5(c). A direct
result is evident when the unemployment resulted from: (1) physical damage or destruction to the
place of employment; (2) the place of employment was closed by the federal, state, or local
government in response to the disaster; or (3) lack of work, or loss of revenues, provided that,
prior to the disaster, the employer or the business received at least a majority of its revenue or
income from an entity that was either damaged, destroyed, or closed in the disaster. /d.

Appellant does not satisfy the above-stated requirements to establish his unemployment was
a direct result of the disaster. Based on his application, Appellant became unemployed on April

25, 2018 — well before the declared disaster and for reasons unrelated to the disaster. While

17 See 20 CFR § 625.8.
18 See 20 CFR § 625.7.
1 See 20 CFR § 625.5.
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Appellant claims to be self-employed, a copy of the business license is insufficient evidence.
There is no showing that Appellant ever generated income that was directly affected by the
disaster. While his continued unemployment or lost business opportunity may have arguably been
exacerbated by the circumstances of the disaster or business, Appellant fails to establish that the
Disaster was a direct or immediate result of the disaster. Further, any potentially lost job or
business opportunity is purely speculative and insufficient to establish the “direct cause”
requirement.

4. Appellant failed to provide sufficient evidence to determine that he is a US Citizen,

non-citizen national, or qualified alien.

DUA is a federal public benefit under the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity
Reconciliation Act (PRWORA). 8 USC §1611(c). Under PRWORA, Federal public benefits can
only be provided to United States citizens, non-citizen nationals, and qualified aliens. 8 USC
§1611(a). A qualified alien is defined as legal permanent residents, refugees, aliens paroled into
the U.S. for at least one year, aliens granted asylum or related relief, Cuban-Haitian entrants,
certain battered spouses and children, certain victims of abuse and extreme cruelty, and certain
victims of trafficking. 8 USC §1641. Qualified aliens must also have an employment
authorization document (EAD). Individuals holding only an EAD do not qualify for DUA
benefits. If an individual provides documentation demonstrating status as an alien paroled into
the U.S. for at least one year, he or she would qualify for benefits, provided the individual met all
other eligibility requirements.

Appellant’s status is unclear based on the information and evidence provided. In his
application, Appellant certifies he is not a US citizen. Instead, Appellant claims to be a CNMI
and USA green card holder. Yet, Appellant does not provide sufficient evidence to support his
claim. Appellant’s appeals documents include: (1) a poorly copied Saipan Identification Card; (2)
a senior citizen discount card; (3) a Social Security Card; and (4) an immigration court order.
These documents are insufficient to determine status. First, the two identification cards issued by
the local government cannot verify status. Second, the Social Security Card does not specify
work-authorized immigration status. Third, the immigration court order identifies a different
person, Nassir Kourbanov, and the court’s findings fall short of granting any type of non-citizen
national or qualified alien status. Accordingly, Appellant fails to provide sufficient evidence to

determine his status.
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VI. DECISION

For the reasons stated above, it is ORDERED that:

1. The Department’s Determination dated April 1, 2019 and the Department’s
Redetermination dated May 10, 2019 is AFFIRMED ; and

2. The Appellant is NOT ELIGIBLE to receive DUA benefits for weeks ending
November 3, 2018 to week ending November 17, 2018.

This decision becomes final unless you file a request for review by the Regional Employment
and Training Administrator, U.S. Department of Labor, within fifteen (15) days after the date of
this order, shown above. The request for review can be filed directly with the Regional
Administrator by mailing the request to: ETA Regional Administrator, U.S. Department of Labor;
90 7th Street, Ste. 17-300; San Francisco, CA 94103, or through the CNMI Department of Labor,
Administrative Hearing Office at 1357 Mednilla Ave, Capitol Hill, Saipan, 96950 for transmittal
to the Regional Administrator. The timely request can also be emailed to the Regional

Administrator at RO6-RA-SF@dol.gov. The request for review should include the Appellant’s

name, claimant ID/or case docket number, and a copy of this decision.

So ordered this 11th day of August, 2023.

/s/
JACQUELINE A. NICOLAS
Chief Administrative Hearing Officer
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1 List of Admitted Exhibits:
) 1. Exhibit 1: Copy of USDOL letters regarding DUA program
2. Exhibit 2: Copy of Department’s Press Releases regarding DUA;
3 3. Exhibit 3: Copy of DUA Benefit Right Handbook
4 4. Exhibit 4: Copy of Appellant’s Letter, dated October 27, 2018
5 5. Exhibit 5: Copy of Documentation Checklist
6 6. Exhibit 6: Copy of Appellant’s Initial Application, filed November 19, 2018;
7 7. Exhibit 7: Copy of Appellant’s Supplemental Questionnaire form for Self-Employed|
8 Individuals, filed November 19, 2018
9 8. Exhibit 8: Appellant’s Identification Cards;
10 9. Exhibit 9: Copy of Appellant’s Notification of Personnel Action;
1 10. Exhibit 10: Copy of Appellant’s Certification of Completion for SCSEP Program;
12 11. Exhibit 11: Copy of Appellant’s Business License;
3 12. Exhibit 12: Copy of Adjudicators Case Notes;
13. Exhibit 13: Copy of Department’s Disqualifying Determination, dated April 1, 2019;
14 14. Exhibit 14: Copy of Appellant Letter for Reconsideration, received May 1, 2019;
15 15. Exhibit 15: Copy of Department’s Redetermination, dated May 10, 2019; and
16 16. Exhibit 16: Copy of Appellant’s Appeal Letter, filed May 22, 2019.
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
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On October 24, 2022, Enforcement initiated the above-captioned compliance agency case
by filing a Determination and Notice of Violation against Respondents.
On February 10, 2023, the Department filed an Amended Determination alleging a
violation of: (1) failure to maintain and submit required records; (2) failure to satisfy the
30% workforce participation objective; and (3) providing materially false or misleading
information to the Department in violation of 3 CMC § 4963(d).
Respondents admitted that they did not maintain or provide 486 required records requested
by the Department, as set forth in Enforcement’s Amended Determination and supporting
exhibits.
Respondents admitted that they did not meet the 30% workforce participation objective
for the nine reported quarters, dating from the first quarter (January - March) of 2020 to
the first quarter (January - March) of 2022, as set forth in Enforcement’s Amended
Determination and supporting exhibits.
Enforcement orally moved to withdraw the remaining claim under 3 CMC § 4963(d).
Respondents had no objection to its dismissal.

IV. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Based on the applicable law and evidence presented, the undersigned concludes:
1.

Respondent failed to maintain and immediately submit required records pursuant to 3
CMC § 4967 and NMIAC § 80-20.1-501.

. Respondent failed to meet the 30 % workforce participation objective pursuant to 3 CMC

§ 4525 and NMIAC § 80-20.1-210.

3. Pursuant to NMIAC § 80-20.1-485(b), the claim for 3 CMC § 4963 is dismissed.

Pursuant to NMIAC § 80-20.1-485(c), the Administrative Hearing Office has authority to
impose a fine or sanction of up to $2,000 for each violation. Based on a totality of
circumstances and other mitigating evidence, a reduced or suspended sanction is

warranted.
V. JUDGMENT

Accordingly, JUDGMENT is hereby entered against Respondent. Pursuant to 3 CMC §4964
and NMIAC § 80-20.1-485(c), Respondent is SANCTIONED $25.00 for each violation under 3
CMC § 4967, and $1,000 for each violation under 3 CMC § 4525, a total of $21,150, all suspended
except $12,000. Respondent is ORDERED to pay the reduced sanction of $12,000 in monthly
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installments of at least $1,000.00, on or before the 15th of each month, beginning August 2023.
Monthly payments shall continue until the imposed sanction is fully paid. In order to make
payment, Respondent or a designee must obtain a voucher from the Administrative Hearing
Office. The voucher, together with payment, must be submitted to CNMI treasury. A receipt or
other proof of payment must be promptly submitted to the Administrative Hearing Office on or
before the due date of each payment.

The amount of $9,150 is SUSPENDED provided that Respondent satisfied all the following
conditions:

1. Respondent timely pays the above-mentioned sanctions; and

2. Respondent commits no further violations of CNMI labor laws and regulations from the

date of this Order to one year after the sanction and any subsequent penalties is fully paid.

Enforcement is ORDERED to monitor the terms and conditions of Respondent’s suspended
sanction and may file a request to reopen this case should Respondent fail to comply. In that
event, Respondent shall be subject to additional penalties and reinstatement of all or part of the
suspended sanction without the need for an additional hearing.

Any person or party aggrieved by this Order may appeal by filing the Notice of Appeal form
and filing fee with the Administrative Hearing Office within fifteen (15) days from the date of
this Order.

So ordered this 8th day of August, 2023.
/s/

JACQUELINE A. NICOLAS
Chief Administrative Hearing Officer
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During the Administrative Hearing, Respondent did not contest or object to any of the
allegations or proposed exhibits. Upon full notice of the allegations and an opportunity to respond,
Respondent confirmed and admitted to multiple violations of the above-mentioned claims.

During the Hearing, Respondent requested a reduced sanction in consideration of their
attempts to cure the violations and their economic circumstances. Respondent proposed a $20,000
sanction with monthly installments of $1,000 per month. Enforcement was amenable to the total
amount and a payment plan.

III. JUDGMENT
Accordingly, JUDGMENT is hereby entered against Respondent.
1. Respondent committed six violations for failure to maintain and submit required records
pursuant to 3 CMC § 4967,
2. Respondent committed three violations for a violation of the employment preference
requirement under 3 CMC § 4521.

3. Respondent committed three violations for failure to post a job vacancy announcement in

violation of 3 CMC § 4522; and

4. Respondent committed three violations for unauthorized employment in violation of 3

CMC § 4963;

Pursuant to 3 CMC §4964 and NMIAC § 80-20.1-485(c), Respondent is SANCTIONED
$2,000 for each violation, a total of $30,000, all suspended except $20,000. Respondent is
ORDERED to pay the entire sanction of $20,000 in monthly installments of at least $1,000.00,
on or before the 15" of each month, beginning August 2023. Monthly payments shall continue
until the imposed sanction is fully paid. Payment may be made by check or money order to the
CNMI Treasury. A receipt or other proof of payment must be promptly submitted to the
Administrative Hearing Office by the due date of each payment.

The amount of $10,000 is SUSPENDED provided that Respondent satisfies all the following
conditions:

1. Respondent timely pays the above-mentioned sanctions; and

2. Respondent commits no further violations of CNMI labor laws and regulations from the

date of this order to one (1) year after payment of the $20,000 sanction is complete.
"
"

VEALTH REGISTER VOLUME 45 NUMBERO8 AUGUST 28, 2023 PAGE 050315




O R0 NN N W R W N

NN NN N N N N N = e e o o e e e e
0 NN A W B WN = O VO W NN N R W N = o

COMMON

Enforcement is ORDERED to monitor the terms and conditions of Respondent’s suspended
sanction and may file a request to reopen this case should Respondent fail to comply. In that
event, Respondent shall be subject to a reinstatement of all or part of the suspended sanction
without the need for an additional hearing.

Any person or party aggrieved by this Order may appeal by filing the Notice of Appeal form
and filing fee with the Administrative Hearing Office within fifteen (15) days from the date of
this Order.

So ordered this 25th day of July, 2023.
/s/

JACQUELINE A. NICOLAS
Chief Administrative Hearing Officer
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